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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
MEGHBELA INFITEL CABLE & BROADBAND PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of MEGHBELA INFITEL
CABLE & BROADBAND PRIVATE LIMITED (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 31st March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the standalone financial statements™),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except
for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(*Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS’) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31st March 2023,
and its loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Company’s ‘Revenue from Operations’ include broadcasters® share in subscription income from
pay channels, which has correspondingly been presented as an expense which is not in accordance
with the requirements of Ind AS-1135, “Revenue from contract with customers’. Had the Management
disclosed the same on net basis, the ‘Revenue from Operations' and the ‘Pay Channel, carriags
sharing and related cost’ each would have been lower by Rs 1,78,756 thousands for the year ended
31st March 2023 and the loss would have remained the same as currently reported.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘*ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
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ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 37 to the accompanying standalone financial statements, which indicates
that the Company has incurred a net loss (including other comprehensive income) of Rs 93,885
thousands during the year ended March 31, 2023, and as of that date, the Company’s accumulated
losses amount to Rs 121,998 thousands resulting in a negative net worth of Rs 121,898 thousands and
its current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs 45,831 thousands resulting in negative working
capital. The above factors along with other matters as set forth in note 37, indicate a material
uncertainty, which may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. However, on the basis of the factors mentioned in aforesaid note to the accompanying
standalone financial statements, the management is of the view that going concern basis of accounting
is appropriate for preparation of these financial statements.

The above assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as going concern is by its nature
considered as key audit matter in accordance with SA 701. In relation to the above key audit matter,
our audit work included, but was not limited to, the following procedures:

* We obtained an understanding of the management’s process for identification of events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt over the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
and the process to assess the corresponding mitigating factors existing against each such event or
condition.

* Evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of key controls around aforesaid
identification of events or conditions and mitigating factors, and controls around cash flow projections
prepared by the management.

* We obtained the projected cash flows from the management for the next twelve months from the
balance sheet date, basis their future business plans.

* We held discussions with the management personnel to understand the assumptions used and
estimates made by them for determining the future cash flow projections.

* The key assumptions such as revenue growth rate, changes in direct and administrative expenses,
and capital expenditure outflows, were assessed for reasonableness by reference to historical data,
future market trends, existing market conditions, business plans and our understanding of the business
and the industry in which the Company operates.

* We tested mathematical accuracy of the projections and applied independent sensitivity analysis to
the key assumptions mentioned above to determine inputs leading to high estimation uncertainty of
the cash flow projections
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* We assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of disclosures made by the Company with respect to
the aforesaid events and conditions in accordance with the provisions requirements of Ind AS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion and Material Uncertainty
Related to Going Concern sections, we have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

1. Key audit matter

Revenue Recognition

Subscription, activation income is recognised and accrued based on the underlying subscription plans,
tariff and agreements with the concerned subscribers or cable operators. Similarly, placement,
carriage and marketing revenue are recognised and accrued based on the underlying agreements with
the concerned broadcasters.

The Company has presence across different marketing regions within the country. Accordingly, there
is large variety and complexity in the contractual terms with the subscribers, cable operators and
broadcasters.

The revenue is also recognised based on estimation as per the latest terms of the agreement or latest
negotiation with customers and broadcaster as appropriate.

Based on the above it is considered as key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We have performed the following procedures for assessment of recognition of revenue:

¢ Understood, evaluated and tested the key controls over the revenue recognised on sample basis

¢ On sample basis, checked the revenue recognised under subscription income with the rates
approved by the management of the Company and communicated to the local cable operators or
subscribers using subscriber management system.

* On sample basis, checked the revenue recognised under the placement, carriage and marketing
income with the agreement entered into by the Company with the broadcasters.

e Performed analytical procedures and cut-off procedures for reasonableness of revenues
recognised.

|« Reviewed the reconciliation between the accounting system and operating system.
* Assessed the judgments and estimates made by the management in revenue recognition.
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2. Key audit matter

Pravisioning for Expected Credit Loss ("ECL')

Trade receivables comprise a significant portion of the current financial assets of the Company. As at
March 31, 2023 trade receivables aggregate Rs 73,502 thousands (net of provision for expected credit
losses of Rs 22,247 thousands).

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets.

Since the Company has revenue streams which are dissimilar, the management has identified different
classes of trade receivables basis the customer profile and nature of service provided or item sold. The
management regularly assesses each class of trade receivables for recoverability. Provision for ECL is
created by the management considering the recovery trends noted for the respective class, adjusted for

forward looking estimates. Additional provision is created for the receivables speci fically identified as
doubtful or non-recoverable,

Estimation of the rates at which provision for ECL is to be created for each revenue stream, involve
significant degree of judgment and estimate.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We have performed the following procedures for assessment of sufficiency of the provisioning for

ECL:

* Obtained the ageing of trade receivables and discussed the key receivable balances, considering if
any correspondence is available to establish the management’s assessment of recoverability of
such dues.

¢ Analysis of the methodology used to determine the provision amount for the current year.

* Assessing key ratios which include collection periods and days outstanding.

*  Tested subsequent settlement of trade receivables after the balance date on a sample basis.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this audit report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.
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When we read the other information included in the Annual Report if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter of those charged with
governance,

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs (financial position), loss (financial performance including other comprehensive
income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting




Agarwal K & Co. LLP

T: +91 33 4001 0567 / 4063 0566 E : office@agarwalkco.in W : www.agarwalkco.in
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work: and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance. we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation preciudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication. =
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has not paid any remuneration
to its directors during the year and therefore the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the
Act are not applicable to the Company.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) Except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, in our
opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d) Except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, in our
opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f) We have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the
Company as on 31st March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date and our report dated 24" day of May
2023 as per Annexure B expressed modified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting;

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 3 1st March 2023;

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 3 1st March 2023;
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iv.  (a) the Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no fund
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) the Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(¢) based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

v.  the company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year,

vi.  Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly,
reporting under rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

For Agarwal K & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI F'mfz) chisuatibnf-anber: E300016

pE) 7 J)
Gourav Gupta
Partner
Membership Number 064579

UDIN: 2506073 Bg buv 1 G229
Place: Kolkata

Date: 24" day of May 2023
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of MEGHBELA INFITEL CABLE & BROADBAND
PRIVATE LIMITED of even date)

1. (a)(A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipments and relevant
details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The company has a program of physical verification of it's property, plant and equipments
other than set top boxes, which are in possession of customers/third parties and distribution
equipment comprising overhead and underground cables and other equipment. Management
is of the view that it is not possible to physically verify these assets due to their nature and
location. Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant and equipments were physically
verified by the management during the year. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, other than for physical verification of set top boxes and
distribution and other equipment referred to above, the frequency of verification of property,
plant and equipments is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets.

(¢) The company does not own any immovable properties and hence no title deeds are held in
the name of the company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including right-
of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year,

(¢) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as
at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

o0}

(a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ¥ 5 crore, in
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

Lad

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
investments in, companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, and not granted unsecured
loans to other parties, during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.
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In our opinion according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans and
investment made, and guarantees provided by it, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed
deposits as at March 31, 2023 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the requirement of maintenance of cost
records under clause 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Cost Records
and Audit) Rules, 2014, is not applicable to the company for the year. Hence, reporting under
clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and information and
explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed
statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Service
Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and
other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company
examined by us, there are no dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty,
Excise Duty, Entertainment Tax, Goods and Service Tax and Value Added Tax which have
not been deposited as on 31st March, 2023 on account of disputes.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961.

(a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings
or in the payment of interest thercon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

(¢) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding
term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order
is not applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by
the Company.
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(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f)
of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year,

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year (and upto the date of this report), while determining the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it;
the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 & 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard
(AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant
rules,

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

(b) The company is not required to appoint the internal auditor as per the provisions of the
Companies Act 2013. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
him/her. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.




Agarwal K & Co. LLP o

T:+91 33 4001 0567 / 4063 0566 E : office@agarwalkco.in W : www.agarwalkco.in

16 The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

17 The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year.

18 There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

19 On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

20 (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other
than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the
Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the
said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the
year.

(b) There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under sub-
section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing project.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Agarwal K & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Figsti __‘i!l_,eg',isit;;:g_tip‘n Number: E300016
Goura\rl-_(-}hpta A i

Partner - 2

Membership Number 064579

UDIN: 2306497 a8 (Nvicd 3Ty
Place: Kolkata

Date: 24" day of May 2023
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 3(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of MEGHBELA INFITEL CABLE & BROADBAND
PRIVATE LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MEGHBELA INFITEL
CABLE & BROADBAND PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31,2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) cf
the Companies Act, 2013. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company: and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following
material weakness has been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements as at 31 March 2023.

The Company’s internal financial controls over preparation of financial statements with respect to
presentation and disclosure of ‘Revenue from operations’ in accordance with the requirement of
IndAS 115 *Revenue from contracts with customers’, were not operating effectively which has
resulted in a material misstatement in the amounts recognised as ‘Revenue from operations’ and ‘Pay
channel, carriage sharing and related cost’ including the relevant disclosures in the standalone
financial statements, while there is no impact on the net loss for the year ended 31 March 2023.

A ‘material weakness® is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements as at 31 March, 2023, based on the internal financial control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
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and except for the effects of the material weakness described above on the achievement of the
objectives of the control criteria, the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the nature,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, and the material weakness as mentioned above,
has affected our opinion on the standalone financial statements of the Company and we have issued a
qualified opinion on the standalone financial statements.

For Agarwal K & Co. LLP
Chartered Accoun -3
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Gourav G up'ti‘-;M
Partner

Membership Number 064579
UDIN: 2306457588, huv/ied 254

Place: Kolkata
Date: 24™ day of May 2023



Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pvt Lid

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 In (T) '000s
Notes March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A. Assels
1. Non-current assets
(@) Property, plant and equipment El 128.237 148,171
(b) Capital work-in-progress 4 6,013 8,787
(e) Goodwill 5 5223 5,223
(d) Other mtangiblc assets 5 58,833 78,445
(¢) Financial assets
(1) Other financial assets 6 1,561 1,519
(1i) Deferred tax assets 7 - 9,390
Sub-total of Non-current assets 199,866 251,534
2. Current assets
(i) Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables 8 73,502 90,105
(i1) Cash and cash equivalents 92 2,687 2474
(111) Other financial assets 10 7473 2,265
{b) Current tax assets 11 2914 944
(c) Other current assets 12 3,520 6,879
Sub-total of Current assets 90.097 102,667
Total assets 289,963 354,201
B. Equity and liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 13 100 100
(b) Other equity 14 (121,998) (28,113)
Sub-total - Equity (121,898) (28,013)
Liabilities
1. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial hiabilities
(1) Borrowings 15 274,946 238,733
(b) Provisions 16 987 1,187
Sub-total - Non-current liabilities 275,933 239,920
2. Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 17 3,799 23,799
(11) Trade payables 18 47322 47,547
(ii1) Other financial liabilities 19 66,999 49.927
(b) Other current liabilities 20 17,773 20.961
(d) Provisions 21 35 59
Sub-total of current liabilities 135,928 142,294
Total equity and liabilities 289,963 354.201
Summary of significant accounting policies 3

The neccompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

This is the balance sheet referred (o in our report of even date.

For Agarwal K & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: E300016

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pvi. Lid
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Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pvt Ltd

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

All Amount In (3) '000s,
unless otherwise stated

Notes March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue
Revenue from operations 22 289,704 237,770
Other income 23 2,385 10
Total revenue 292,089 237,780
Expenses
Pay channel and related costs 24 227.616 179.850
Employee benefit expenses 25 21,297 15,138
Finance costs 26 18,062 8.861
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 27 71,787 57,958
Other expenses 28 18,927 13,317
Total expenses 357,690 275,123
Profit /(Loss) before exceptional items (65,601) (37,343)
Exceptional items 29 19.802 -
Profit /(Loss) before tax (85,402) (37,343)
Tax Expenses 9,390 (9,390)
(a) Current Tax
For Current Year - -
For Earlier Year - -
(b) Deferred Tax 9,390 (9,390)
Profit /(Loss) for the year (94,792) (27,954)
Other Comprehensive Income 30 907 -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (93.885) (27.954)
Eaming Per Share ( ¥ ) 31
Basic (9,389) (2,793)
Diluted (9,389) (2,795)
Summary of significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the statement of profit and loss referred (o in our report of even date

For Agarwal K & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: E300016

= =00 f
\7 -\\_ i

Gouray Gupta.
Partner =
Membership Number: 064579

UDIN: 2306Y 17979 RSG v e 294
Place: Kolkata

Dme:&y—fbcgc_? o‘{' May 2022

Dirgttor

Surendra Kumar Agarwala
DIN:00569816

M

Mayank Agarwal
Manager- A & I

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pvt. Lid
(CIN: U64202DL2015PTC282643)

> e Foedlabin g

Indranil Bhattacharya
Director




Meghbela Infite]l Cable & Broadband Pvt Ltd
Statement of Change in

A Equity Share Capital

for the vear ended March 31, 2023

(%) in '000s
. . Restated balance at the . .
Balance at Sg:::g?p::j:::fo beginning of the Ch::g:‘ :ndeql.myt:h.n Balance at
Ist April 2022 2 current reporting G SRR She 3ist March 2023
prior period errors g current year
period
100 - - - 100
(%) in "000s
. . Restated balance at the .
mancent || SR | gt | e
Ist April 2021 . - current reporting 31st March 2022
prior period errors current year
period
100 - - - 100
B Other Equity (%) in '000s
Reserves and Surplus
g Securities Premium o ctained Earnings  Total Other Equity
Reserve
Balance as at April 01, 2022 - (28,113) (28,113)
Profit / (Loss) for the year - (94,792) (94,792)
Other Comprehensive Income - 907 9207
Total Comprehensive Income for the year = (93.885) (93,885)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - (121,998) (121,998)
Balance as at April 01, 2021 - (159) (159)
Profit / (Loss) for the year - (27.954) (27,954)
Other Comprehensive Income - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - (27,954) (27,954)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 - (28,113) (28,113)

This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date

For Agarwal K & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: E300016
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/ f 4:)
Gourav*Gupta > _. o
Partner : /

Mnmbership‘h amber: 064579

UDIN: 23 6&Y5792 & sy IC329 L
Place: Kolkata

Date:r__gz;ﬂdlazj O}Jvl? 2012

Sure

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pvt. Ltd
(CIN: U64202DL2015PTC282643)
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ra
Diregtor
DIN:00569816

Indranil Bhattacharya
Director

D[N 01034434
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Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pvt Lid
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

In (%) '000s
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax (85.402) (37.343)
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 71,787 57.958
Provision for Retirement Benefit 683 1,246
Provision for doubtful debis 2,446 -
Interest expense 18,060 8,860
Operating profit before working capital changes 7574 30,721
Movements in working capital ©
Increase /(Decrease) in trade payables (225) 47 405
Increase/(Decrease) in Other current finacial liabilities 17.072 49927
Increase/{Decrease) in Other current liabilities (3,188) 20961
Decrease/ ( Increase) in other non current financial assets (42) (1,519)
Decrease/ ( Increase) in Trade receivable (5.644) (90.105)
Decrease/ ( Increase) in other current financial assets (5,208) (2.265)
Decrease/ ( Increase) in other current assels 3359 (6.841)
Cash generated from /(used in) operations 13.696 48.284
Exceptional ltems 19,802 <
Cash Generation from operating activities after exceptional items 33498 48,284
Income Tax Paid ( including TDS) 1,971 Qe
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 31,527 47,340
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets including capital work in progress (29.467) (298.549)
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) (29,467) (298,549)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 36213 238.733
Proceeds from / (Repayment) of short-lerm borrowings (20,000) 23,799
Interest expenses paid (18.060) (8,860)
Net eash flow from /(used in) financing activities (C) (1.847) 253.672
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 213 2463
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 2474 11
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,687 2474
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
in Rs '"000s in Rs "000s
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 2,687 2474
Cheques in hand - -
Total cash and cash equivalents (note 9) 2,687 2474

Note: The above Standalone Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the “Indirect Method® as set out in Ind AS 7,

‘Statement of Cash Flows®

This is the cash Mow statement referred to in our report of even date,

For and on behalfl of the Board of Directors of
Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pvt. Lid.
(CIN: UG4202DL2015PT(282643)

nd mar Agarwala Indranil Bhattacharya
irector Director
Membership Number: 064579 DIN:00569816

UDIN:23 686 :
Place: Kolkata YEI98S1IMvIC 99, y
Date: Qz.,fhd_aa @ Nraa Eogs QEQMJR AL

ayank al
Manager- A & F

Wy



Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pvt Ltd
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Company Overview
1 Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Private Limited ("the Company") was incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956. The Company is Multi System Operator (MSO) engaged in the distribution of television channels through digital cable
distribution networkand other related services. The Company is a subsidiary of Indian Cable Network Company Limited which is
subsidiary of Siti Network Limited and hence Siti Network Limited is the utlimate holding company.

2 Basis of preparation
Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS ) as prescribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with relevant rules of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 read with
companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for following :

a) Financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that is measured at Fair value/ Amortised cost;
b) Non-current assets held for sale — measured at the lower of the carrying amounts and fair value less cost to sell;
¢) Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value

Current Vs non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is :

a) Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

¢) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

) All the other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when :

a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are classified as non-current assets
and liabilities respectively.

Functional and Presentation Currency
The Financial Statements have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All

financial information presented in INR has been rounded off to the nearest thousand as per the requirements of Schedule [11.
unless otherwise stated.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous year, unless
otherwise mentioned, and are explained below-

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Use of Estimate

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities on the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of Income and Expenses during the period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current or future periods.
The most significant techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies below. Critical accounting judgments and
the key sources of estimation or uncertainty in applying the Company’s accounting policies arise in relation to the following and
also in relation to other accounting policies as stated elsewhere.




Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pvt Ltd
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(i) Property, Plant & Equipment
Property, Plant & Equipment held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the balance sheet at cost/deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

(ii) Intangible Assets
Software, Customer acquistion cost and VC Cards are included in the Balance sheet as an Intangible asset where they are clearly

linked to long term economic benefits for the Company. In this case they are measured initially at purchase cost and then
amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

(iii) Revenue Recognition

The Marketing and Placement income is recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss on the basis of contract with the
Broadcasters. Since this is a continuous service, therefore in few cases the Income is recognised following the trend of past basis
in the absence of agreement pending renewal.

(iv) Claims, Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

The Company has ongoing litigations with various regulatory authorities and third parties. Where an outflow of funds is believed
to be probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on management’s assessment of specific
circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice, management provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such
accruals are by nature complex and can take number of vears to resolve and can involve estimation uncertainty. Information about
such litigations is provided in notes to the financial statements.

(v) Uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 :

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying
amounts of receivables, unbilled revenues and investment in subsidiaries. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible
future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these
financial statements has used internal and external sources of information including credit reports and related information,
economic forecasts. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on current estimates
expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered.The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements
may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements.

b) Property, Plant and Equipment

(i) Recognition and Measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment is recognised at cost\deemed cost less accumulated depreciation or impairmment losses if any,
incurred to bring the asset to the present condition and location. The cost of fixed assets comprises its purchase price net of any
trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities),
any directly aftributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use and interest on barrowings attributable to
acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up o the date the asset is ready for its intended use.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials, direct labour and any other
costs directly attributable to bringing the item to its intended working condition and estimated costs of dismantling, removing and
restoring the site on which it is located, wherever applicable.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

The items of spare parts, stand-by equipments and servicing equipments that satisfy the definition and recognition criteria of
Property , Plant and Equipment is classified under Capital work in progress. Capital Work in progress comprises of the cost of
fixed assets that are not put to use at the reporting date.

Set top boxes are treated as part of Capital Work In Progress till at the end of the month of activation, after which the same are
depreciated.




Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pvt Ltd
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(ii) Depreciation on Tangible Assets

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on straight line method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the Management.
Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during the period is proportionately charged. Leasehold land is amortized over the
effective period of lease.The details of estimated life for each category of asset are as follows:

Asset Estimated useful life based on SLM
Computers and Data Processing Equipment 3 years

Plant and Machinery 8 years

Set Top Boxes 8 years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 8 years

Office Equipments 5 years

Softwares which are an integral part of Property, Plant 6 years

and Equipment

(iii) Disposal of Assets

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss.

¢) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets comprises of Goodwill, Customer Acquisition Cost and Softwares.

Intangible Assets acquired in business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Goodwill acquired on business combination is measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Other Intangible Assets acquired through purchase/on business combination are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition. intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Asset Estimated useful life based on SLM
Customer Acquisition Cost 5 years
Software and VC Cards 6 years

d) lmpairment of Assets

(i) Financial Assets

For the purpose of computation of expected credit loss, the Company has analysed the trend of provisions for doubtful debts
created in earlier years and has also considered the fact that the Company has revenue from DAS customers which has been
booked as per prepaid model of billing. The expected credit loss has been computed on basis of recoverability (after analysing
each head separately) for DAS customers. Further, the Company has analysed expected credit loss separately for carriage revenue
customer (including Marketing & Placement Income customers) and other than carriage revenue customer primarily because the
characteristics and historical losses trend was different in these two streams.

(ii) Non-Financial Assets

The Carrying amount of the fixed assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard-
36 on “Impairment of Assets™ prescribed by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) rules as amended from time to time,
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. Impairment test is performed for an individual asset, unless asset does
not generate cash flows that are largely independent. Otherwise the assets are tested for Cash Generating Units (CGUs). An
Impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss if the assets or CGU's carrying amount exceeds the greater of
Fair value less cost or Value in use. Reversal of Impairment are recognised through Statement of Profit and Loss except those
routed through reserves.




Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pvt Ltd
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

¢) Leases

Where the Company is a lessor

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as
operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included in Property, Plant and Equipment. Lease income on an operating
lease is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on monthly rental basis, wherever applicable over the lease term.

Where the Company is a lessee

The Company, as a lessee, recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing arrangements, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset.

The contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, if it involves the use of an identified asset and the
Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset and has right to direct the usc of the identified asset.
The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusied for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets is
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of
the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate.

For short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

f) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing Costs are the interest or the other cost which the entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of the funds. These
include interest expense calculated using the Effective interest method as per Ind AS 109. Borrowing cost which are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a "Qualifying Asset” are included in the cost of the asset when it is
probable that they will result in the future economic benefit to the entity and it’s cost can be measured reliably.

g) Inventories

Inventories are valued as follows-

Stock in trade & Stores and spares valued at cost on weighted average method or at net realisable value whichever is lower.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

h) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services to a customer for an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable taking into account the amount of discounts, rebates, outgoing
taxes on sales of goods or services.
(i) Subscription Income

Subscription income includes subscription from subscribers/ Cable Operators relating to cable TV, Revenue from Operations is
recognised on accrual basis based on underlying subscription plan or agreements with the concerned subscribers/ Cable

(ii) Marketing and Placement Income
Marketing and Placement Income is recognized on accrual basis over the terms of related agreement/ negotiations provided that
there is no significant uncertainity regarding the realisable amount of consideration.

(iii) Income From Activation of Services
The Company has adopted Ind As 115 and accordingly these financial results are prepared in accordance with recognition and
measurement principals laid down in Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™. In pursuance of the same, Income
from activation of digital cable services is recognised as revenue over the initial contract period.




Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pvt Ltd
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(iv) Advertisement Income

Advertisement Income is recognised on accrual basis from the date(s) of insertion of advertisements based on the terms specified
in the release orders.

(v) Other Services
Income from dark fiber leasing is recognized on accrual basis as per terms of the respective contracts,

(vi) Sales of Goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed
to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. The company collects sales taxes, value added taxes and Goods & Service Tax
(GST) on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the company. Hence, they are
excluded from revenue.

i) Foreign Currency Transaction

Transaction in foreign currency is recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the transaction date (s). Transaction remaining
unsettled, is translated at the rate prevailing at the end of the financial year. The exchange rate difference arising there-from are
adjusted in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

j) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.

(i) Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. The transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through Profit or Loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial
liability. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through Profit and Loss are immediately recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest
income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Compound Financial Instruments

Separation of instrument into its liability and Equity component is made at the time of Initial recognition. The fair value of
liability component establishes its initial carrying amount which is then deducted from the fair value of the instrument as a whole
to arrive at the residual amount being recognised as the equity component. The fair value of the liability component at the initial
recognition is the Present value of the contractual stream of future cash flow discounted at the market rate of Interest that would
have been applied to the instrument of comparable credit quality with substantially the same cash flow.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial Assets

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the
asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model

whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the

financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amounl-%

outstanding. o0k B agy
—Te y "9

)
/ /ﬁkﬂ- | CLTA ;,:
o}

C'E‘/ 01:0;\../3 Vit

~




Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pvt Ltd
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables

maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of
these instruments,

(iii) Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
they expire.

(iv) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty.

k) Retirement and other employee benefits

Payments to defined contribution plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments made to state managed retirement
benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribution schemes where the Company’s obligations under the schemes
are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme._For defined benefit retirement schemes, the cost
of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at each
balance sheet date. Re-measurement gains and losses of the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) are recognised immediately in
other comprehensive income. The service cost, net interest on the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) is treated as a net expense
within employment costs.

Past service cost is recognised as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs or when any related restructuring
costs or termination benefits are recognised, whichever is earlier.
The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined-benefit obligation as
reduced by the fair value plan assets.

1) Taxation

Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the reporting period. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in
the Statement of Profit and Loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. In
contrast, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is seitled or the asset is realised
based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

m) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, e-wallet balance, deposits held at call with banks and other short term deposits.




Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pvt Ltd
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

n) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

(i) General

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can be reliably estimated,
Each provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date.
When appropriate, provisions are measured on a discounted basis.

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where:

(a) by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated
to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities; and

(b) as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge those
responsibilities.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if' it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

(ii) Contingent Liabilities

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not
require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is
remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

o) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the period. The Company did not have any potentially dilutive securities in any of the periods
presented.

p) Segment Reporting
The company is a Multi System Operator providing Cable Television Network Services and Other Related services which is

considered as the only reportable segment. The company's operations are based in India.

.
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Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pvt Ltd

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 4 : PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENTS & CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS In (%) "000s
Particulars FMe g Computers | Office equipment| " “Trorre "™ | Set tap boxes Total cwip
Year ended 31 March 2022
Gross Carrying Amount as on 01 Aprl 2021 52 - - - - 52 -
Additions 2} 12 21 2 9979 12,087 12,353
Assets acquired on Business Combinations 36,718 108 429 309 140,548 178,112 -
Dhsposals = = = - = - 3,566
Closing Gross Carrying Amount 38,534 130 451 310 150,527 190,252 4,787
Accumulited Deprecintion
Opening Accumulated Depreciation 18 - - - - 18 -
Depreciation charge during the year 8819 6 215 53 32,969 41,003 -
Closing A lnted Depreciuti 8,837 & 215 53 32,969 41.081 -
Net Carrying Amount as on 31 March 2022 29,997 123 135 257 117,558 145,171 8,787
Year ended 315t March 2023
Gross Carmying Amount as on 01 April 2022 38834 130 451 3o 150,527 190,252 8,787
Additions 4199 9% 105 - 27841 32,242 23970
Disposals - - - - - - 26,744
Closing Gross Carrying Amount 43,033 25 556 EI 178,368 2249 6,013
Accumulated Deprecintion
Opening Accumulsted Depreciation 8,837 & 215 53 32,969 42,081 -
Depreciation charge duning the year 9242 24 97 66 42746 52,178 -
Closing A lated Depreciati 18,079 30 312 1ne 75,716 94,256 -
Net Carrying Amount as on 31 March 2023 24,954 195 244 191 102,653 128237 6,013
C Work In Progress
As at As at 3ist March
Particulars 31st March 2023 2022
[Set Top Boxes 6013 8.787
A in CWIP for a period of
More than
s ey As at Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 Years 3 Yeurs Total
Set Top Boxes March 31, 2023 6.013 - = - 6,013
Set Top Boxes March 31, 2022 8787 - 3 ;3 8,797




Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pvt Ltd

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 5 : GOODWILL & OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS In (T) '000s
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASEETS
TR TOTAL
PARTICULARS GOODWILL Aé”“::'l;’l:_'g; COFTWARE OTHER
Q(,'OST 3 © | INTANGIRLE
ASSETS
Year ended 31 March 2022
Gross Carrying Amount as on 01 April 2021 - = - -
Additions - - 11 11
Assets acquired on Business Combinations 5,223 94,232 97 94,329
Closing Gross Carrying Amount 5,223 94,232 108 94,340
Accumulated Amortisation
Opeming Accumulated Amortisation - - - -
Amaortisation for the year - 15.866 29 15,895
isposals - - - -
Closing Accumulated Amortisation - 15,866 29 15,895
Net Carrying Amount as on 31 March 2022 5,223 78,366 79 78,445
Year ended 31 March 2023
Giross Carrying Amount as on 01 April 2022 5223 94,232 108 94340
Additions - = = =
Disposal - - - -
Closing Gross Carrying Amount 5,223 94,232 108 94,340
Accumulated Amortisation
Openming Accumulated Amortisation - 15,866 29 15,895
Amortisation charge for the year - 19,578 34 19.612
Disposals - - = -
Closing Accumulated Amortisation - 35444 63 35,507
Net Carrying Amount as on 31 March 2023 5,223 58,788 45 58.833
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6 Other financial assets (Nom current)
Secunity deposiis - Linsecured. considered good

7 Deferred tax asset ((linbilities) (Net)
Deferred tax asset

Fixed pssets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/ amortization

charged for the financial reporting

Impact of expenditure charged 1o the statement of profit and loss in the current vear but

allowed for tax purposes an paynient basis
Impact of temporary diffe in resp
Gross deferred tax asset

of unutilised tax losses,

Net deferred tax asset/ (liabilities) (Net) (Refer Note No. 38)

(T) in "000s
Muarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1.561
1561

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1.519
L519

> 1622
= 313
- 7,455

- 9,390
- 9,39

TMarch 31,2023 March 31,2022
8 Trade receivables

Unsecured - considered good, Includes Rs 51,952 thousands (PY Rs 39,536 thousands) e 90,105
receivable from entities in which di 18 % ber or di )
L ed - considered doubtful, Includes Nil (P Y Nil) receivable from entities m which 22247 =
director is parmer, member o director)
95,749 20,108
Less: Provision for Expected Credit Loss 22247 -
73,502 90,105
Trade Receivables ageing schedule for the year ended March, 31 2023 is as follows:
Owtstanding for followwng penods from due date of payment
——— "‘::’: ® |6monthstyear| 1-2years 23 years M";'““:' ; Total
(1) Undisputed - Trade receivables — considersd good 65.158 1,940 6404 - - 73,502
(i1} Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant incrense in credit nsk - - - - - -
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired 7,541 647 14,059 - - 2247
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good - - - = = .
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which huve
significant increase in credit risk = — — - — -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - . - -
Total 72,699 2,587 20,463 = - 95,749
Less - Allowance for Credit Loss 22247
Total Trade Receivables as on 315t March, 2023 73,502
Trade Receivables ageing schedule for the yvear ended March, 31 2022 is as follows: .
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment?
Particulars Lane- o & monthe1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mn;:::l:ni Total
(i) Undisputed - Trade receivables — considered good 17,756 72,349 - - - - 90,105
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit sk - - - = = =
(111} Undisputed Trade Recetvables —credil impaired - - - = = =
(iv) Dispuied Trade Receivables— considered good - - - - - =
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables —which have
sigmificant merease in credit sk - - - - - -
(1) Disputed Trade R bles — credit impaired - - - = = 5
Total 17,756 72,349 = = = 90,105
Less - Allowance for Credit Loss -
Total Trade Receivables ns on 3 1st March 2022 LGS

9 Cush and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand
(Includes Cheque In Hand Rs 454 thousands (CY ) Rs
425 thousands (PY) and wallet balancePOS Balance Rs
490 thousands (CY) Rs 438 thousands (PY))
Balances with banks
In current accounts - -

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

2,687 2474
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(%) in *000s
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
10 Orther current financial asseis
Unbilled revenue 7473 2,265
7473 2265
11 Current tax assets (net) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current tax assets
Advance tax 2914 944
Current tax liabilities
Provigion for tax - L
2914 94

Murch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

12 Other current assets

Advance to vendors 1,521 3,150
Balances with statuwtory authorities 1,822 3,682
Other advances 83 47
Prepaid expenses L) -
3520 S5T9_
13 Share eapital March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Authorised share capital
10,000 ¢ 10,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/ each 100 100
Total authorised capital 100 100
Issued share capital
10,000 (10,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 100 100
Total issued capital 100 100
Subscribed and fully paid up capital
10,000 (10,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- cach 100 100
Total paid up capital 100 100

Reconcilation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are set out below
{i)Equity Shares

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Particulars ) a 0008 = ) in 0008
Al the beginning of the yvear 10,000 100 10,000 106
Issued dunng the pernod - - 2 -
Shures bought back during the vear & e = g
Any other movement (please specify) . - - -
Outstanding ai the end of the year 10,000 100 10,000 100

Terms & rights sttached to equity shares

The company has oaly one class of equity shares having par value of T 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares 1s entitled to one vote per share,

In the cvent of liguid of the pany, the holders of equity shares will be atied to g asscts of the pany, after dismbution of all pref 1l
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

Disclosure pursuant to Note no. 6(ANN of Part | of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013

Out of Equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its bolding compary, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries’ associates are as below:
Fardiulrs 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

(T) in "000s (T) in "0M)s
Equity Shares
Indian Cable Net Company Limiied, the holding company 7.600 76 7.600 76

7.600 (7,600) Eguity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully pmd

Indian Cable Net Company Limited is subsidiary of Siti Network Limited and hence Siti Network Limited is utlimare holding company. Siti Network Limited do not
hold any shareholding in the company as on 31.03.2022.

Details of share holder more than 5% share as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022
Equity _S_h___l:u

Name of Sharcholder As at 31" March 2023 As a1 31" March 2022

No. of Shares | % of Holding | No. of Shares | % of Holding
Indian Catble Net Company Limited 7,600 76.00% 7,600 76.00%
Infiniti Television & Telecom Py Lid 1.200 12.00% 1200 12.00%
Indranil Bhattacharys 240 2.40% 240 2.40%
Jayania Bhattacharya 240 2405 240
Partha Bhottacharva 240 2.40% 240

Manoranjan Bhattacharya 240 2.40% 240
ITIM Mukherjee 240 2.40% 240
—— m




Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pvt Ltd

Notes to financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
IShum held by promoters at the end of the year 2022-23 2021-22

|Promoter’s Name
% of Total Y of Change e of Tatal % of Change
No. of Shares N g
Shares during the year > ot Shares during the year
Indian Cable Net Company Limited, Holding Company 7.600 76% 0% 7.600 6% 6%
Infiniti Television & Telecom PviLid 1.200 12% 0% 1,200 12% =399
Indranil Bhattacharya 240 24% 0.0% 240 24% “T4%
Jayanta Bhattacharva 240 24% 0.0% 240 24% -7.4%
|Partha Bhattacharva 240 24% 0.0% 240 24% =T.4%
Manoranjan Bhoattucharyn 240 24% 0.0% 240 24% -T4%
| Tapabrata Mukherjec 240 24% 0.0% 240 24% ~7.4%
Muarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
14 Other Equity
Surplus / Deficit in the Statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginning of the year (28.113) (159
Add: Profi\(Lass) for the year (94,792) (27.954)
Other Comprehensive Income 907 -
Balance at the end of the year {l!liﬂq {glﬂ!
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
15 Borrowings (Non-Current)
Loan from related parties - unsecured 274,946 238,733
(Repayable on demand) 274,946 238,733
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
16 Provisions {Non-Current)
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuiy 1 1014
Provigion for compensated absences 446 173
987 1,187
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
17 Borrowings (Current)
lLoan from related parties - unsecured 3,799 23,799
(Repayable on demand) 3,799 23,799
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
18 Trade payables
- Total owstanding dues of creditors for micro enterprises and small enterpnises * - -
- Total omstanding dues of creditors- others 47322 47.547

47322 47,547

Trade Payable ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2023
Ouistanding for following periods from due dite of paviment

Particulars Lt thnin 3 1-2 vears -3 years BisrE > Total
year years

(1) MSME - - - - F

(i) Others 47,322 - - - 47322

(1) Dusputed dies — MSME - - - - =

(v)Dispuled dues - Others - - - - -

Total Trade Payable as on March 31, 2023 47312 - - - 47322

Trade Payable ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022
Ouistanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2 3yenis Move a3 Total
year years

1) MSME = = = = =

(i) Others 47.405 143 % 2 47,547

{iii ) Disputed dues — MSME = = = = =
(iv)Disputed dues - Others - = i = x
Total Trade Payable as on March 31, 2022 47405 143 - - 47,547
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(%) in ‘000
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

19 Other Current flinancial iabilities

Creditors for capital goods 27035 13847
Payable for contractual habilines 251 1,265
Advance from related parties 19307 19307
Book overdraft 18,135 5,508

66999 49,927

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

20 Other Current Liabilitics

Uneamed mcome 8,372 10,043
Advances from customers 5311 7.029
Payable for staturory ablities 4,000 3,889
17,773 z_u,g_n_l_
21 Curreni Provisions March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provision for emplovee benefiis
Provision for gratuity 2 a6
Provision for campensated absences 33 13
s 59

o
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22

23

24

25

26

Revenue from operations
Sale of services
Subscription income

Carriage income & marketing income
Activation and set top boxes pairing charges

Other operating revenue

Other networking and management income

Other income

Interest on Income Tax refund
Liabilities written back

Other non-operating income

Pay channel and related costs

Pay channel expenses

Lease rental & right to usage charge
Business support services

Other operational expenses
Commission charges and incentives

Employee benefit expenses
Salaries. allowances and bonus

Contributions to provident and other funds

Gratuity fund contribution
Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs

Interest on statutory liabilities
Bank charges

Interest Cost

(%) in "000s
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
215,510 195,584
64,518 38,914
2,329 3,187
7.347 85
289,704 237,770
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
73 -
2.047 10
265 P
2,385 10
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
178,756 67,090
2,967 2,991
20,640 80.118
24559 20,013
694 637
227,616 179,850
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
18,472 12.966
1.476 845
391 1.060
958 266
21,297 15,138
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
45 33
2 0
18.015 8.827
18,062 8,861
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(%) in '000s
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022

27 Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Depreciation of tangible assets 52.175 42,063
Amortisation of intangible assets 19612 15.895
71,787 57,958

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

28 Other expenses

Rent 4491 3.236
Rates and taxes 148 141
Communication expenses 44 29
Repairs and maintenance

- Network 2.626 1.169

- Others 282 128
Electricity and water charges 873 927
Legal, professional and consultancy charges 363 1,104
Printing and stationery 56 40
Service charges 888 637
Travelling and conveyance expenses 1,083 363
Auditors' remuneration 379 340
Vehicle expenses 3,731 3.540
Provision for Expected Credit Loss 2,446 -
Rebate and Discount 345 982
Business and sales promotion 200 70
Miscellaneous expenses 973__ 612

18,927 13,317
29 Exceptional item March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provision for expected credit loss 19.802 =
19,802 -
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Note No. 30 () in '000s
Year Ended Year Ended

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME March 31,2023  March 31, 2022

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans as under 907 -

Remeasurement of employee benefit obligations
(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassfied to profit or loss - -

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -

(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassfied to profit or loss - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 907 -

Note No. 31

Earni h Year Ended Year Ended
ool March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Profit attributable to equity shareholders (Rs) in '000s (93.885) (27,954)

Number of weighted average equity shares

Basic 10,000 10,000

Diluted 10,000 10,000

Nominal value of per equity share (%) 10 10

Earning Per Share ()

Basic (9.388.53) (2,795.37)

Diluted (9.388.53) (2,795.37)

-
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Note 32: Tax Expenses

The major components of Income Tax for the year are as under: (%) in '000s
Mar-23 Mar-22

Income tax related to items recognised directly in the statement of profit and loss

(i) Current tax - current year - -
-earlier years - -
(ii) Deferred tax charge / (benefit) 9.390 (9,390)
Income tax expense reported in Profit or Loss [(i)+(ii)] 9,390 (9,390)
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Section
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Current Tax (income) / expense on remeasurement of defined benefit plans - -

Effective tax rate -10.99% 25.14%

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to the profit before income tax at statutory rate to the income tax
expense at the Company's effective income tax rate for the year ended 31 March, 2023 and 31 March, 2022 are as
follows:

() in '000s
Mar-23 Mar-22
Profit before tax (85,402) (37.343)
Effective tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Statutory income tax on profit (21.,494) (9,399)
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 24213 14,909
Additional allowances for tax purposes (11,611) (12,965)
Temporary differences in respect of unutilised tax losses. 8,892 7.455
Others / Deferred Tax effect 9.390 (9.390)
Tax effect for earlier years B -
Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 9,390 (9,390)

The applicable statutory Income Tax rate is 25.17% for the FY 2022-23 (25.17% for FY 2021-22).
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to do so. For analysis of
the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes refer note no-7.

Deferred tax recognised in statement of profit and loss

(%) in '000s
For the year ended Mar-23 Mar-22
Employee retirement benefits obligation - (314)
Allowances for credit losses - (7,455)
Depreciation and amortisation - (1,622)
Reversal of Deferred tax recognised in earlier years due to no virtual cetainity 9,390 -
Total 9,390 (9,390)
(%) in '000s
Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) net: Mar-23 Mar-22
Opening balance 9.390 0.60
Deferred tax (charge)/credit recognised in
-Statement of profit and loss (9.390) 9.390
-Recognised in other comprehensive income - -

Total - 9,390

-~ B, 208
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Fair value measurements
Accounting classification and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2023

A. Financial instr is by eategory (%) in '000s
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Amortised Amaortised

FVTPL FVOC! cost FVTPL FVOCl cost

Financial assets (Non Current & Current)

Secunty deposits (Non current) - - 1.561 - - 1,519
Unbilled revenues - - 7473 - - 2,265
Trade recevables . - 73,502 - - 90,105
Cash and cash equivalents - - 2,687 - - 2474
Total financial assets - - 85213 - - 96,363

Financial liahifities (Non Current & Current)

Borrowings (non-current. financial liabilities) - = 274 946 - - 238733
Borrowings (current financial habilines) - - 3,799 - b, 23,799
Trade payables - - 47322 - - 47.547
Other financial liabilities (current) - - 48,864 - - 44419
Book overdraft 18,135 5,508
Total financial iabilities E = 393,067 - = 360,007

*=The Company hias not disclosed the fair values for financial mstruments such as cash & cush equivalents, short renm trade receivables, short term trade payalbiles because their
camying tsarear ble approximation of fur value,

:" el M o e l; = ’I'ld o
Financinl risk management
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is 1o finance the Company’s operations and to
provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and short-ferm deposits that derive directly
from its operations. The Company's activities expose it to & vanety of financial nsks: market nsk, credit risk and liqmdity nsk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

A, Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a ar party to a fi ial instrument will fail to perform or pay nmounts due to the Company ing fi ial loss. The Company's
exposure to credit nisk 1s mfluenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and financial assets measured at amortised cost. The Company continuously momitors
lefaulis of and other parties and incorporates this information into its credit nsk controls.

Credit risk management

Credit risk ranng

The Company assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categories armived on the basis of asumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of
linancial assets.

A Low credit risk on financial reporting date

B: High eredit nsk
e Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:
Aasset group Basis of categorisation Provision for expected credit loss
Cash and cash equivalems and other financial Life time expected credit loss or fully
Low credit risk usscts excepl Trade Receivable security deposits provided for
and amount recoverable
» fit £i Trade wvahbles, security deposits, unbilled Life nme expected credit loss or fully
Hhgh s revenue and amount recoverable provided for

Rased on business environment in which the Company operates. a default on a financial asset is considered when the counter party fails to make payments within the agreed time
period as per contract. Loss rates reflecting defaults are based on actual credit loss experience and considening differences between current and histonical economic conditions.

(%) in "000s
Credit rating Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Cash and cash equivalents and other finamcial
Low credit risk assets except Trade Receivable secunty deposits 2687 2474
and amount recoverable
Trade receivables, security deposits, unbilled
High credit nsk rowenue med Araoudt bl 82536 93,889

Concentration of trade receivables
The Company has widespread customers and there 15 no concentraiion of trade receivables.

v
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Credit risk exposure

Provision for expected credit losses

For the purpose of computation of expected credit loss, the Company has annlysed the trend of provisions for doubtful debts ereated in earlier vears and has also considered the
fact that the Company has revenue from DAS customers which has been booked as per prepaid model of billing. The expected credit loss has been computed on basis of
recoverability (after analysing mh head separately) for DAS costomers . Further, the Company has analysed expected credit loss separately for carriage revenue customer
(including Marketing & Pl ) and other than carniage revenue customer primarily because the characteristics and historical losses trend was different in

these two streams. The company does not expect any further risk of credit impairment on account of possible impact relating to COVID 19 in estimating expected eredit loss
provision,

Expected credit logs Tor trade 1 bles, security deposit and { uble under simplified spproach
as at March 31, 2023 (%) in "000s
Estimated Carrying
2ross Expected amount net
Ageing carrying  credit of
amouni at  Josses  impairment
default provision
Trude receivables 73,502 22247 51,255
Security Deposit 1,561 - 1,561
Unbilled Revenue 7473 - 7473
as at March 31, 2022 (%) in '000s
Estimated Carrying
gross Expected  amount net
Ageing carrying credit of
amount at  losses  impairment
default provision
Trade receivables 90,105 - 90,105
Seeurity Deposit 1,519 - 1,519
Unbilled Revenue 2265 - 2265
Reconcilintion of loss allowance provision — Trade receivables (T} in '000s
Loss allowance on March 31, 2022 -
Changes in loss all 22247
Loss allowance on March 31, 2023 22,247
B. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that suitahl of fi ¢ for the Company'’s busimess activities may nol be available
Prudent hguidity nsk management implies marma.mmg sufficient cash and marketable wumues and ﬂw avatlability of funding through an adequate amount of commitied credit
facilities to meet obligations when duc and to close out market positions. Managy 5 g forecasts of the Company’s hquidity position (comprising the undrawn
borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows, Short term quuldm wqmrmr:nu comprises mainly of trade pavables and employee dues
arising during normal course of business as on cach balance sheet date. Long- term Liguidity requ is i by the gement on periodical basis and is managed

through internal accruals and through funding commitments from shareholders. As at cach statement of financial position date, the Company's liabulities having contractual
matnties (including imterest payments where applicable) are stmmarnised as follows:

(i) Maturities of financinl liabilities
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrving balunces as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

() in "000s
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities | Less than |One to two | More than | Less than |One to two | More than
one year vears | two years | one year years Iwo vears
Non-derivatives
B 25 (non fi 1al labilities) 274 946 - - 238,733 -
Bormrowings (curmrent, financl halwlities) 3,799 - - 23,799 - -
Other fnancial liabilines 66,999 - 49,927 - -
Trade payables 47302 - - 47,547 - -
Total non-derivative liabilities 118,120 274946 - 121,274 238,733 -
C.Market Risk

Market nsk is the risk that changes m market prices - such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates - will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial
mstruments. The objective of market nsk management 15 1o manage and control market risk exposures within acceplable parameters, while optimising the return
The Company is not exposed to such risk as Company does not have any foreign curmency transactions and does not have any derivative trasactions
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35 Capital management
Risk Management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital 1s to safeguard continty, mamtam a strong credit rating and healthy capital rutios m order to support 1ts business and provide
adequate return to sharcholders through continuing growth, The Company’s overall strategy remaing unchanged from previous year. The Company sets the amount of eapital
required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which mclude capital and other strategic investments The funding requirements are met through a mixture
of equity, internal fund generation and other non-current borrowmgs. The Company’s policy 18 1y use eurrent and fion-ourren! borrowings to meet anticipited funding
requirements. The Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total capital (equity plus net debt) . The Company is not subjzct to atiy
externally imposed capital requirements. Net debt are non-current and current borrowings as reduced by cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and current investments.
Equity comprises all components including other comprehensive income.
(%) in "000s
Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Cash and cash equivalents 2 687 2474
Other bank balances - -
Total cash (A) 2,687 2474
Baorrowings (non current, financial linbilihes) 274,946 238,733
Borrowings (current, financial liabilities) 3,799 23.799
Current manurities of long-term borrowings = =
Total borrowing (B) 278,746 262,532
Net debt (C=B-A) 276,059 260,058
Total equity (121,898) (28,013)
Total capital (equity + net debts) (D) 154,160 232,045
Gearing ratio ((/D) 179% 112%
Classification and t of financial assets and liabilities
The classificution and measurement of financial assets will be made considerg whether the conditions as per Ind AS 109 are met based on facts and circumstances existing at the
date of ransition
Finangial assets can be measured using effective mterest method by assessing its contractual cagh Mlow characteristics only on the basis of facts and circumstances existing at the
date of transition and if it 1s impracticable 1o assess ¢lements of modified tme wlul: of money i.c. the use of effective interest method, fair value of fnancial asset at the date of
transition shall be the new camying amount of that asset. The ent pplies for fi ial liabilitics as well.
Applving a requirement 1s impracticable when an entity cannot apply it after malr.m;, every reasonable effort to do so. 1t 15 impracticable 1o apply the changes retrospectively il
a) The effects of the retrospective application or retrospective restatement are not determinable,
b The retrospective appheation or restatement requires assumphions about what management’s imtent would have been w that penod;
The retrospective application or refrospective restatement requires significant estimates of amounts and it is impossible to distinguish objectively information about those
estimates that existed at that time
36 Ratios

The ratios for the year ended March, 31 2023 and March, 31 2022 are as follows

As at March, 31 Variance in

Particulars Numerator Denominator 2023 2022 % Remarks
() Current Ratio, Total of current assets Total of current 0.66 072 -8 13% Decrease in Trade Receivables
() Debt-Equity Ratio, Total Debts Sharcholder's Equity (229) (937 -75.60% Loss i Current Year
(¢) Debt Service Coverage Ratio, Earning for Debt Service Debt Service (0.05) 011 ~142.28% Increase in Loss of Current Yi
() Return on Equity Ratio, Net Profit After Taxes  Average Sharcholder's 126 1.99 -36.50% Loss i Current Year
() Invenitory tmover ratio, Sale of Traded Goods Average Inventory NA NA NA =
(D) Trade Receivables turnover mtio, Total Revenue less Avernge Trade 154 528 -32 89% Increase in Average Trade
Excess Provisions Receivables Receivables
() Trade payahles timover ratio, Total Expenses less  Average Trade Payables 5.19 8.05 -35.53% fiorease: 51 A Trade
expenses which doesnot Payables &
generute payable
(hy Net capital tumover ratio, Revenue Working Capital (6.32) {6.00) 3.35% Increase in Working Capital
Gap
(1) Net profit ratio, Net Profit After Taxes Revenue (321) (11.76) 178.31% Increase in Loss of Current Yr
(1) Return on Capital employed Eamings before Interest  Average Sharcholder's 0.90 203 ~113.26% Loss i Current Year
(k) Return on mvestment. Income generated from  Time weighted averape NA NA NA ***

** Company is not a trading concern and hence these ratio 15 not applicable
***The company does not have any Investments and hence these ratio 1s not applicable.
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37 The company continued to incur losses during the year ended March 31, 2023 & had negative working capital and also negative net worth as at March 31, 2023
growth, cash flow from operating activities and other mitgating factors like continued financial supports
from its stakeholders, these financial results for the vear ended March 31, 2023 continued to be prepared on a going concern basis.

3

41

But in view of the management, the d

*

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act 2006,
The management has identified dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterpnises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) on
the basis of information made avmlable by the supplier or vendors of the Company The disclosures relating 1o amount unpaid of vendors registered under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 as on March 31, 2023 together with mterest paid or payable under this Act is NIL.

Contingent liabilitics (to the extent not provided for

There are no Claims against the Compamy which 1s not acknowledged as debis.

The Company incurred losses of Rs 94,792 thousands durimg FY-2022-23 & Rs 27,954 thousands in FY-2021-22 . Hence the company is not liable to spend its
funds in the activities which are specified in Schedule VII as mentioned in the Section 135 of Companies Act 2013

Gratuity and other employment benefit plans
Defined contribution plan

Contribution to defined contribution plan, recognised as expense for the year are as under -

Defined benefit plan

(1) The detail of employee benefit for the period in respect of gratuity which is funded defined benefit plan is as under:

. Presemt vilue of obligations

) in ‘0003

PARTICULARS From 01-04-2022 To 31-03-2023 | From 01-04-2021 To 31-03-2022
Present Value of Obligation at the heginning of the 1.060 )
period ;
Interest Cost 77 -
Current Service Cost 314 -
Past Service Cost - -
Benefits paid (if any) - =
Actuanal (guns)loss (909) -
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the peniod 543 1,060
b Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the balance sheet (T) i "000s
PARTICULARS From 01-04-2022 To 31-03-2023 | From 01-04-2021 To 31-03-2022
Presemt Value of Obligation at the end of the period 543 1,060
Fair Value of plan asseis at the end of the penod - -
Net Liability/( assets) recognised in Balance Sheet and 43 1,060
relaied analysis
Funded Status - Surplus / (Defien) (543) (1.060)
¢ Expense Recognised m the siatement of profit & loss account (T) in "000s
PARTICULARS From 01-04-2022 To 31-03-2023 | From 01-04-2021 To 31-03-2022
Interest Cost T -
Current Service Cost 34 1,060
Past Service Cost =
'Ewpuclr.ﬁ return on Plan Assets = -
Net Accurial (gain)1.oss recognised in period (909) =
Expenses to be recogmsed in the Statement of Profit &
Loss (518) 1,060
o Other comperhensive (i Vexpenses(Re ment } (%) in "000s
PARTICULARS From 01-04-2022 To 31-03-2023 | From 01-04-2021 To 31-03-2022
Cumulative unrecognized actuarial (gainVloss - -
Acturial (gain)/loss-obligation (909) -
Acturinl (gain)/loss-plan assets - =
Total Acturial (gain)/loss (909) -
Cumulative total actuarial (gain)/loss. CT (909) -

_%f —t F l4a QM
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| ey e

el (%) in '000s
Period As on March 31, 2023 As on March 31, 2022
Current Liabulity 2 46
Non Current Liability 541 1,014
Total Ligbility 542 1,060

{ The assumptions employed by actuary for the caleulations are mbulated:

Period From 01-04-2022 To 31-03-2023 | From 01-04-2021 To 31-03-2022
Discount rate 7.50% pa. 7.25% pa
Salary Growth Rate 5.00% pa 3.00% pa
Muortality IALM 2012-14 TALM 2012-14
Expected rate of return - -
Withdrawal rute ( Per Annum) 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.

{11) The detnil of employee benefit for the period in respect of leave encashment which is fimded defined benefit plan is as under:

a. Present value of obligations (%) in 0005
PARTICULARS From 01-04-2022 To 31-03-2023 | From 01-04-2021 To 31-03-2022
Present Value of Obligation at the beginning of the 186 N
peniod
Int Cost 13 -
Current Service Cost 279 -
Benefits paid (if any) - =
Actuarial (gains)/loss 2 -
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 480 186
b. Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the balance sheet () in 'O
PARTICULARS From 01-04-2022 To 31-03-2023 | From 01-04-2021 To 31-03-2022
Present Value of Obhigation at the end of the period 480 186
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the period - =
Net Liability/(assets) recogmised in Balance Sheet and 480 186
related analys:
Funded Status - Surplus / (Deficit) (480) (186)
¢ Expense Recognised in the statement of profit & loss account (T) in "000s
PARTICULARS From 01-04-2022 To 31-03-2023 | From 01-04-2021 1o 31-03-2022
Interest Cost 13 -
Current Service Cost 279 5.0
Past Service Cosi - -
Expected return on Plan Assets - -
Net Accurial (gainyloss recogmsed i period 2 -
Expenses to be Tin the St of Profit &
Loss 294 1 86
d_ Other comperhensive (income Vexp Re-measurement ) (%) in "000s
PARTICULARS From 01-04-2022 To 31-03-2023 | From 01-04-2021 To 31-03-2012
Cumulative unrecognized actuarial (gam)/loss - -

Acturial (gain)/loss-obligal 2 =
Acturial (gain)loss-plan assets - -
Total Actunal (gamnloss 2 -
Cumulative total actuarial (gain)loss. C/F 2 -
e, Lubility (%) in "000s
Period As on March 31, 2023 As on March 31, 2022
Current Liability 33 13
Non Current Liability 446 173
Total Linbility 480 186
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f The assumptions employed by actuary for the calculations are tabulated.

Period From 01-04-2022 To 31-03-2023 | From 01-04-2021 To 31-03-2022
Discount rate 7.50% p.a, 725% pa
Salary Growth Rate 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.
Mortality TALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14
Expected rate of retum - -
Withdrawal rate ( Per Annum) 5.00% pa 5.00% p.a

& [Discount Rate 1s based on the prevailing market yield of Indian Government Securities’ as the balance sheet as date for expected term of obhigation.
b. Salary Escalation rate is based on estimates of future salary increases taking into consideration of inflation, semority, promotion and other relevant factors

42 Details of Pending Litigations:
There are no pending Litigations against the company as on 31.3 2023

43 Payment to Aunditors (T) in "000s
PARTICULARS 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Audit Fees 138 125

Tax Audit Fees 33 75

Limited Review Fees 125 113

Other Services 7 2

Reimbursement 28 25

TOTAL 379 340

44 The Company predominamly operates in a single business segment of cable distnbution in India only. Hence there are no sepamately reportable business or
geographical segments as per Indian Accounting Standard (*Ind AS™) 108 on Opernting Segments.

45 Exceptional Item includes: (%) in 000
Particluars 31-Mar-23  31-Mar-22
Provision for Expected Credit Loss 19,802 Nil

19,802 Nil

During the vear ended March 31, 2023 the company has provided a provision for expected credit loss of Rs 198.02 lakhs.

In view of the New Regulatory Framework for Broadcasting & Cable services notified by Telecom Regulatory Authority of India (TRAI), which has come into
effect during the year ended March 31,2019 resulting into changes in pricing mechanism & arrangements amongst the Company, LCO & Broadeasiers the
Muanagement, based on review, has provided for impairment of trade receivables. These adjustments, having one- time, non outine material impact on financial
smtements, hence been disclosed as "Exceptional ltem in Financial Resulis”

46 Leases
The Company incurred Rs 4,491 thousands for the vear ended March 31, 2023 towards expenses relating to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
Lease contracts entercd by the Company majorly pertains for premises taken on lease to conduct its busi n the ardinary course. The Compuny does nol have
any lease restnictions and commitment towards vanable rent as per the contract
47 Value of Imports calcutated on CIF Basiy (T) in 000
Particlunrs 31-Mar-23 _ 31-Mar-22
Capital Goods Nil Nil
il Nil
48 Expenditure in foreign currency (%) in "000s
Particulars 31-Mar-23 _ 31-Mar-22
Annual Maintenance Charges Nil Nil
Nil Nil

49 For the vear ended March 31, 2023, the ‘Subscription income’ included in the ‘Revenue from operations’ in these financial stntements, inter alia, meludes the
amounts payable to the broadcasters towards their share per Tariff order 2017 in relation to the pay channels subscribed by the customers. The aforementioned
corresponding amounts (1. Broadcaster's share) has also been presented as an expense in these financial statements. The said amount is Rs 178,756 thousands for
the year ended March 31, 2023 in the financial statements
Had these expenses been disclosed on net basis, the “Revenue from operations’ and the *pay channel and related costs” each would have besn lower by Rs 1,78,756
thousands for the year ended March 31, 2023 in the financial statements. However, there would not have been any impact on the net Joss for the year ended in the
financial statements,

50 Balances of Loans & Advances, Trade Receivables, Trade Payables, and other assets & linbilities are subject to confirmation

51 In the opinion of the Board of Directors the current assets, loans and advances shown in the Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2023 mmmdmedgmdnndﬁ;lty
recoverable, except otherwise stated and provision for all known liabilitics has been made in the accounts.
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52 Revenue from contracts with customers

(A) Disageregation of revenue {T) in "
Year Ended  Year Ended

Particulars 31-Mar-23  31-Mar-22

Revenue from operations

Sale of services

Subscription mcome 2,I5510 195,584

Marketing & placement income 64,518 38,914

Activation and Set top boxes pairing charges 2329 3,187

Other operating revenue

Other networking and management income 7347 85

2,89,704 2.37.770

The Company has disaggregated the revenue from contracts with customers on the basis of nature of services’goods sold The Company believes that the
disaggregation of revenue on the basis of nature of services/goods sold has no impact on the nature, amount, timing & uncertainty of revenues and cash flows.

{B) Contract Balances
The Company classifics the right to consideration i exchange for deliverables as cither a receivable or as unbilled revenue
Trade recervable and unbilled revenues are presented net of imparrment in the Balance Sheet

The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities for the contracts with

the customers.
(%) in '000s
As at As at

Particulars 31-Mar-23  31-Mar-22
Receivables, which are included m Trade and other receivables' 73.502 90,105
Contract assets (Unbilled Revenue) 7473 2265
Contmet hiabilittes (Uncarned Revenue) 8372 10,043

89,347 1,02,413
The contract assets is the Company's rights to consideration in exchange for goods or services that the company has ferred to its The contract
liabilities primarily relate to the billing recognized in advance where performance obligations are yet 1o be satsfied.
Significant changes in the contract assets and the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows
Contract Linbilities (%) in '000s

31-Mar-23  31-Mar-22
Particulars Contract Contract
liabilities linbilities

Balance at the beginning of the year 10,043 -
Add: Advanee Income received from the customer during the year 8372 10,043
Less: Revenue recognised that is included in the contract hability balance at the 10,043 -
beginning of the vear
Balance at the end of the year 8372 10,043

(C) Performunce Obligations and Remaining Performance Obligations

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate smount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the end of the reporting period
and an explanation as to when the Company to recogmize these n re Applyving the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company
has not disclosed the remaining performances as the performance obligations relates to contracts that have an onginal expected duration of one year or less

Remaining performance obligation estimates are subject to change and are affected by several factors. including terminations, changes in the scope of contracts,
periodic revalidations, adjustment for revenue that has not materialized and adjustments for currency.

53 Related Party Disclosure

List of parties where control Exists

a Ultimate Holding Company
Siti Network Limited

b Holding Company
Indian Cable Net Company Limited

¢ Fellow Subsidiary Company
» Siti Maurya Cable Net Pvt. Ltd
* Indinet Service Pvi. L1d

d  Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by KMP or their relatives™™

« Meghbela Cable & Broadband Services P Lid
* Pacenet Meghbela Broadband P. Lid
= Infiniti Television & Telecom Pyt Lid
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e Key Managerial Personnel

- Mr. Surendra Kumar Agarwala Director
Mr. Suresh Kumar Sethiya Director
- Mr. Atul Kumar Singh Director
- Mr._ Indranil Bhattacharya Director
- Mr. Jayanta Bhattacharya Director
* Mt, Tapabrata Bhattacharya Director
** with whom the Company has i dunng the current vear and previous year
Transactions with related parties (%) in '0005
Infiniti Television & Indian Cable Net Company Meghbeln Cable & Pacenet Meghbels
Particulars Telecom Pvt Litd Lid Broadband Pvi. Lud. Broadband Pvt Lid
FY 22-23 FY 21-22 FY 22-23 FY 21-22 FY 22.23 FY 21-22 FY 22-23 FY 21-22
Exp paid on behalf of the company = = = z 136 (12.162) S =
Payment for purchase of material &
SETVICES - - 6,000 - 28,101 39,905 = =
Payment for Slump Sale - - - - - 2,500 - -
Purchase of material & Services - - (17,174) - (32,143) (93.676) - -
interest Payable (Net of TDS) 3 = (16,213) (7.937) = = =
Sale of service and materials - - - - 0270 34.091 - -
Agquisition through Slump Sale - - - - (2,500) - -
Advances recd - - - (19.307) - - -
Borrowings - (1,50,000) (45,000) (1,80,000) (50,796) - (8.799)
Assets taken over (30,820)
Liabilities taken over - - - - 378712 71,521 - -
Repayment of Borrowings 20,000 1,30,000 - - 25,000 - - 5.000
Outstanding at the heginning of year (20,000) - {2,07.244) - (11,260) (143) (3.799) -
Outstanding at the end of year - (20,000) (2,79,631) (2,07,244) 26,155 (11,260) (3,799) (3,799)

54 The Code on Social Security, 2020 has been enacted by the Indian Parliament, which would impact the contributions by the company towards Provident fund and
Gratuity. The effective date from which the changes will be applicable and the corresponding Rules, are yet to be notified. The Company will complete it's
evaluation and will give appropriate impact in the period in which the Code and the corresponding Rules become effective.

55 Disclosue of Transactions with Strike off companies

The following table depicts the details of balances outstanding in respect of transactions undertaken with a company struck-off company under section 248 of the
Companics Act, 2013

(%) in '000s
Name of strike off Company Nature of Balance as at | Balance as at | Relationship
transactions 3lst st with the
with struck- | March,2023 | March,2022 struck off
off Company company
Renaissance Network Pt Lid - - 0 | Customer
Sonar Bangla Commumnication Pvt Lid - - 300 |Customer
AM Warldwide Media Pyt Lid 250 |Customer

* Outstanding balances of above mentioned pumes are written off dm'lng the financial year 2022-23

56 The financial statements were have been approved by the Board of Di s in their

¢ held on 24th day of May 2023,

57 Additional Regulatory Information detailed in clause 6L of General Instructions given m Part | of Division 1T of the Schedule Il 1o the Companies Act, 2013 are
furnished 10 the exient applicable 1o the Company.

S8 Previous year's figures have been regrouped and/or rearranged wherever necessary to make them comparable with the current years figures.

Notes to account referred to in our report of even date is annexed.

For Agarwal K & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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ICAI l-lrrn lo.; ENQD!G {CIN: Us4202DL2015PTC282643)

o=
Co'/
— ~:l'

I—F WEJUUL

Membership Number- 064579 H
UDIN: L2,6 6 Y559 B4 INvIc G339

Place: M k Agarwal
Date: 9 5 A2, Aca oj, J‘Vl aa 2623 Manager-A & F %{/uﬂ



